TOWN OF CHATHAM
488 State Route 295, Chatham, NY 12037

Town Board Meeting Tentative Agenda
Thursday, July 18, 2024 @ 6:30PM

This Meeting is IN PERSON (Town Hall) For Board Members With the Exception of the Occurrence of Extraordinary
Circumstances

IN PERSON and VIRTUAL for the Public

Google Meet: meet.google.com/tazefzmxbh  Join By Phone: (Us) +1224-814-1308 PIN: 632 413 079%

> RECORDING NOTICE
> CALL TO ORDER

> PLEDGE ALLEGIANCE TO THE FLAG

e Moment of Silence for Jim Baker

> OPEN PUBLIC HEARING: Proposed Solar Array Application During Solar Array
Moratorium that Exceeds the threshold of the 25 KiloWatt Unified Solar Permit

e GUIDELINES FOR PROVIDING COMMENTS AT PUBLIC HEARINGS
- The order of speakers will be chosen randomly, each speaker is allowed 3 minutes

- Speakers may not cede their speaking time to others

- Speakers are not to read from letters that they have already submitted and which are attached
to the agenda

e READING OF PUBLIC HEARING NOTICE:
TOWN OF CHATHAM

Columbia County, New York

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN, that a public hearing will be held by the Town Board of the Town
of Chatham at the Town Hall 488 State Route 295, Chatham NY on July 18, 2024 at 6:35PM. The
purpose of accepting public comment on the application for a roof mounted solar array during the
solar array moratorium, that exceeds the threshold of the 25 kilowatt Unified Solar Permit that the
Town currently adheres to. The Town Board has the Authority to oversee the hardship appeal and the
area variance appeal that the applicant must proceed with during said moratorium.

Said application is available for inspection in the Town Clerk’s office during regular business hours
or by clicking on the link above.

By order of the Town Board
Dated: April 4, 2024, Beth Anne Rippel, Town Clerk



> ANNOUNCEMENTS:
1. Heartfelt Thanks to All Who Assisted in the Community Picnic
2. Crellin Park Day August 17, 2024, 2PM-8PM

> CORRESPONDENCE:

1. Resident/Goold Rd Re: Thank you to Hwy Crew for stellar work in removing a tree

2. Resident/Rock City Road Re: Aggressive roadside mowing

3. Resident/Rock City Road Re: Appreciation for immediate response and solution by
Highway Dept and Superintendent Fetzer

4. Resident/East Chatham Re: Street Lighting Survey for East Chatham

5. Resident/East Chatham Re: Street Lighting Survey for East Chatham

> SUB-COMMITTEE REPORTS:
Broadband and Cellular Service Committee- (Councilwoman Hallenbeck/Councilman Werwaiss)
CAP (Chatham Agricultural Partnership)- (Supervisor Collins)
Climate Smart/Action Task Force Committee- (Councilman Eaton)
Communications Committee- (Councilman Wapner)
Finance & Planning Committee- (Supervisor Collins)
Housing Committee- (Councilwoman Hallenbeck)
Parks & Recreation Committee- (Councilman Wapner)
Grants Appropriations Committee- (Supervisor Collins)
CAC- (Councilman Werwaiss)

. Invasive Species Awareness Committee- (Abi Mesick)

e & N B & s WD =

—
_

. Traffic Safety Working Group- (Councilwoman Hallenbeck/Councilman Wapner)

[S—
[\®]

. Zoning Update Committee- (Councilman Eaton/Councilwoman Hallenbeck)

—_
W

. Town & County (Supervisor Collins)

> REPORTS ON FILE:

Assessor

Code Enforcement/Building Inspector
Dog Control

Environmental Mgt Council

Finance Department

Highway Department

Justice Court

Office of the Aging Advisory Board

. Recreation Director

I S SR

10. Supervisor’s Report
11. Town Clerk



> OLD BUSINESS:

1.

Solar Application

> NEW BUSINESS:

L.

2.
3.
4

Town Court Audits

Town Court Lease Renewal

Nomination To Grants Committee- Jen Trolenburg
Manufactured Home: State Law Compliance

o Single Family Dwelling Classification

o Chapter 151 Amendment

> PUBLIC COMMENT

> RESOLUTIONS:
l.

Resolution# 164 -24: To Approve the Town Board Minutes.
WHEREAS, the Chatham Town Board approves the Town Board Minutes for June 20, 2024.

Offered by: , seconded motion:

VOTE: AYE: NAY:

Resolution#165-24: To Accept the Town Accountant’s Financial Supervisor’s Report.
WHEREAS, the Chatham Town Board accepts the Town Accountant’s Financial Supervisor Report for
June, 2024.

Offered by: , seconded motion:

VOTE: AYE: NAY:

Resolution#166-24: To Accept the Financial Abstract as presented to pay the Town Bills.
WHEREAS, the Chatham Town Board accepts the Financial Abstract #7-2024, Abstract #7A-2024 and

Abstract #7B as presented to pay the Town Bills.
Offered by: , seconded motion:

VOTE: AYE: NAY:




Resolution#167-24: To Set an Application Cost for Roof Mount Solar Application

WHEREAS, The Town Board of the Town of Chatham has received an application for a roof
mounted solar array during the solar array moratorium that exceeds the threshold of the 25
kilowatt Unified Solar permit that the Town currently adheres to, and

WHEREAS, the Town Board has granted the hardship appeal, and
WHEREAS, the Town Board must set a fee for the solar application, and

THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, that the Town Board of the Town of Chatham hereby sets
the Kinderhook Farm/Kasselman Solar application fee at $100.00 and Escrow Fee of $300.00.

Offered by: , seconded motion:

VOTE: AYE: NAY:

Resolution#168-24: To Approve the Kasselman/Kinderhook Farm Roof Mount Solar
Application

WHEREAS, The Town Board of the Town of Chatham has received an application for a roof
mounted solar array during the solar array moratorium that exceeds the threshold of the 25
kilowatt Unified Solar permit that the Town currently adheres to, and

WHEREAS, the Town Board has granted the hardship appeal, and

WHEREAS, the Town Board has assumed the responsibility of the area variance appeal
required by the application exceeding the 25 kilowatt Unified Solar Permit threshold that the
Town prescribes, and

WHEREAS, the Town Board has reviewed the application and parameters for the bequeathment
of the area variance appeal, and

THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, that the Town Board of the Town of Chatham hereby
approves the Kinderhook Farm/Kasselman Solar application.

Offered by: , seconded motion:

VOTE: AYE: NAY:




Resolution #169-24: To Appoint a Member to the Grants Appropriations Committee

WHEREAS, the Chatham Town Board created a Grant Appropriations Committee on March 17, 2022
to pursue and apply for fiscal assistance at the pleasure of the Town; and

WHEREAS, the Committee also serves to catalog past, present and future funding assistance to
the Town; and

WHEREAS, resident Jen Trolenberg has expressed an interest in joining the Committee and
assisting the Town; and

THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the Chatham Town Board hereby appoints Jen
Trolenberg to the Grant Appropriations Committee effective immediately:

Offered by: , seconded motion:
VOTE: AYE: NAY:

Resolution #170-24: To Accept the Town Court Audit for 2020, 2021 and 2022

WHEREAS, the Uniform Justice Court Act requires that justices annually provide their court records
and dockets to their respective Town Board and that such records then be examined or audited and that
fact be entered into the minutes of the Board’s proceedings, and

WHEREAS, the Town Board accepted the letter of engagement from UHY, LLP, Town accounting firm
to audit the Town Justice Court records for the period of January 1, 2020 through December 31, 2022 in
accordance with the Handbook for Town and Village Justices and Court Clerks, and

THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, the Chatham Town Board does hereby accept the Town Justice
Court Audit from UHY, LLC for 2020, 2021, and 2022.

Offered by: , seconded motion:

VOTE: AYE: NAY:

Resolution#171-24: To Authorize Supervisor to sign Town Court Lease

WHEREAS, the Town of Chatham has been leasing from the Village of Chatham, the second floor
of the Tracy Memorial Building, located at 77 Main Street, Chatham, New York for town justice,

clerk offices and the Town Court, and



WHEREAS, the Village of Chatham has provided a new lease for the approximate 2200 square feet
of floor space on the second floor of the Tracy Memorial Building at a monthly rent of $1,650.00,

and

WHEREAS, the Town of Chatham and the Village of Chatham wish to enter into a lease agreement for

said Town Court and office space for a one-year period, and

NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, that the Town Board approves the Village of
Chatham lease for a period of one-year at the monthly rate of $1,650.00 for the period of
August 1, 2024 to July 31, 2025 and authorizes the Town Supervisor to sign the Lease

Agreement.
Offered by: , seconded motion:
VOTE: AYE: NAY:

> PUBLIC COMMENT

> MOTION TO CLOSE MEETING



PUBLIC HEARING



kasselman

June 11, 2024
Town of Chatham
Zoning Board of Appeals
488 State Route 295
Chatham, NY 12037

RE: Kinderhook Farm Roof Mount Solar Area Variance Application

Board members,

Per Local Law #2 of 2024 Section 5A (Solar Moratorium]), we are requesting the
opportunity to seek a variance from the strict interpretation of the law due to
unnecessary hardship affecting the subject property.

This project has been in the works since July of 2023 to help a local farm meet
its energy demands and offset rising energy costs. Qur Primary concern is a fast-
approaching deadline for United States Department of Agriculture REAP funding of
9/20/24. The Rural Energy for America Program (REAP) is designed to help farms
such as Kinderhook strengthen the resiliency of their agricultural operations by
issuing grants to support energy improvements. To apply for such grants, a project
must be shovel-ready, including all necessary approvals, such as building permits and
utility interconnection agreements.

As proposed, the Project would be eligible for a REAP Grant at approximately
$177,920.00, or 50% of the project cost. The systemn is designed to save the farm, on
average, $28,000 annually for the next 25 years+.

Chatham’s 6-month solar moratorium is putting Kinderhook Farm well outside
the necessary deadline to apply for a REAP Grant. The Final submission deadline for
REAP Grants is 9/20/ 24, with no indication there will be funds available again next
year or beyond. As previously mentioned, a REAP application requires a “Shovel-
Ready” project which includes an Issued Building Permit.

It is our assumption that a project of this scale would require additional review
from either the Planning Board or Zoning Board of Appeals or both. Potentially adding
at least 1 month of delay (at least 2 if a public hearing would be in order) and pushing
our ability to be “shovel-ready” with a permit in hand into November. Which is well
past the submission deadline of 9/20/24.

Should an extension be added to the moratorium {which is very common in our
experience), there would be no chance of making the application deadline.



At best the building department would have less than 9 business days to issue
a permit for a project type that is not currently classified within town code. We were
denied and referred to ZBA for our initial application, thus we consider it reasonable
to assume that board review will be required post-moratorium.

In closing, approving a variance from Local Law #2 of 2024, would greatly
benefit a local and historic farm by allowing it to secure limited Grant funding. The
nature of the project, despite its size, will be non-obtrusive, largely unseen and will
have nothing but positive impacts on the private farm and the community in which it
will lie.

As it stands, the 6-month moratorium (adopted 03/07/24), is making it
impossible for the farm to apply for a Federal Grant within the necessary deadline of
9/20/24 with an Issued Building Permit.

Kasselman Solar, LLC is a local and leading solar installation company. We
have and will continue to work closely with the residents and business owners of
Chatham, to explore and realize their renewable and cost-saving energy opportunities.
Thank you sincerely for your time and consideration.

{ix ot

im Gardner and Alex Martin
Permitting Coordination
Kasselman Solar, LLC

(518) 918-4800

jeardnenckasselmansolar.com amartuniwkasselmansolar.com




TOWN OF CHATHAM, NEW YORK
APPLICATION TO THE ZONING BOARD OF APPEALS

Appeal No.: Appeal date:

TO THE ZONING BOARD OF APPEALS, TOWN OF CHATHAM, NEW YORK:
(We) Alex Marlin/ James Gardner: Kasselman Solar LLC.  (owner or agent) of
279 Broadway bldg 2, Menands, NY 12204 (518) 918-4800

{malling address and telephone)
Hereby appeal to the Zoning Board of Appeals from the decision of
(8ldg. Inspector, Planning Board, etc.) on application No. date
for Building (Bldg. Permit, Use permit, Subdivision, etc.). Attach

copy of above application and action being appealed.

1. Location of property: 2249 NY-203 Zoning District _B
Tax Map Number 55.-1-33

2. Type of Action:
() An Interpretation of the Zaning Ordinance or Zoning Map
() A Special Use Permit under the Zoning Ordinance
{ ) An Area Varlance to the Zoning Ordinance {prlor to final determination a licensed survey may be required)
() A Use Variance
{) Other

3. Previous Appeal: A Previous Appeal (has) (has not) been made with respect to this decision
of the Zoning Officer or with respect to the property. Such appeal was in the form of:

{ ) A Request for Interpretation () A Request for an area Variance
{ ) A Request for Special Permit { ) A Request for a Use Variance
and was {were) made in Appeal Number dated ,20

4. Description of proposed project: (If an area variance, include the estimate of the distance for

the variance from the setback)
Proposed project is the installation of a 112.6 kW roof mounted solar array requesting an area variance

for 87.6 kW of relief

S. Provision(s) of the Zoning Ordinance Appealed:
§180-58 (W)(1)

{Indicate the article, Section and paragraph of the Zoning Ordinance being appealed by number)



Reason for Appeal: (complete relevant section)
A. Interpretation of the Zoning Ordinance is requested because:

B. A Special Use Permit under the Zoning Ordinance is requested pursuant to Article ,
Section ,Paragraph of the Zoning Ordinance because

C. An Area Variance to the Zoning Ordinance is requested and the zoning board of appeals shall
take into consideration the benefit to the applicant if the variance is granted, as weighed against
the detriment to the health, safety, and welfare of the neighborhood or community by such
grant. In making such determination, the board shall alsc consider:

1. Whether an undesirable change will be produced in the character of the neighborhood or a
detriment to nearby properties will be created by the granting of the area variance;

2. Whether the benefit sought by the applicant can be achieved by some method, feasible for the
applicant to pursue, other than an area variance;

3. Whether the requested area variance is substantial;
Whether the proposed variance will have an adverse effect of impact on the physical or
environmental conditions in the neighborhood or district; and

S. Whether the alleged difficulty was self-created.

The Applicant states that the each of the above five criteria are met as follows:
1. There will not be an undesirable change in the character of the neighborhood as the array will not be visible.

2. The benefit cannot be achieved by another method.

3. The requested variance is substantial but only in terms of the request and not the effect to the surrounding area.

4. The installation wili not have an adverse effect on the physical or environmental conditions of the neighborhood.

5. The alleged difficulty was not self created as the energy offset being sought is relative to the energy consumption of

the site of the proposed project.

D. A Use Variance to the Zoning Ordinance is requested and the Zoning Board of Appeals

shall take into consideration.
1. The applicant cannot realize a reasonable return, provided that lack of return is substantial as
demonstrated by competent financial evidence.
2. That the alleged hardship relating to the property in questions is unique, and does not apply to a
substantial portion of the district or neighborhood;
3. That the requested use variance, if granted, will not alter the essential character of the
neighborhood; and
4. That the alleged hardship has not been self-created.



The Applicant states that the each of the above four criteria are met as follows:

SEQR Short Form, Deed, Site photos, Site plan, Specification sheets.
{list attached documents)

Enclosures:

Please refer to the attached checklist to be sure that you have all required information for this submission.

Qtexe TVlartin g.a,m X? andner oo

Applicant’s Signature Date




Short Environmental Assessment Form
Part 1 - Project Information

Instructions for Completing

Part 1 — Project Information. The applicant or project sponsor is responsible for the completion of Part 1. Responses become part of the
application for approval or funding, are subject to public review, and may be subject to further verification. Complete Part | based on
information currently available. Ifadditional research or investigation would be needed to fully respond to any item, please answer as
thoroughly as possible based on current information.

Complete all items in Part 1. You may also provide any additional information which you believe will be needed by or useful to the
lead agency; attach additional pages as necessary to supplement any iter.

Part 1 — Project and Sponsor Information

Name of Action or Project:

Kinderhook Farm LLC PV Array Installation

Project Location (describe, and attach a location map):
2248 NY-203, Chatham, New York 12037

Brief Description of Proposed Action:

Name of Applicant or Sponsor: Telephone: (518) 300-0633

Alex Martin: Kasselman Solar, LLC. E-Mail: amartin@kasselmansolar.com

Address:
279 Broadway bidg 2
City/PO: State: Zip Code:
Menands NY 12204
1. Does the proposed action only involve the legislative adoption of a plan, local law, ordinance, NO YES
administrative rule, or regulation?
If Yes, attach a narrative description of the intent of the proposed action and the environmental resources that D
may be affected in the municipality and proceed to Part 2. If no, continue to question 2.
2. Does the proposed action require a permit, approval or funding from any other government Agency? NO YES
If Yes, list agency(s) name and permit or approval: Town of Chatham: Variance
Town of Chatham: Building permit D
3. a. Total acreage of the site of the proposed action? 22 acres
b. Total acreage to be physically disturbed? 0 acres
¢. Total acreage (project site and any contiguous properties) owned
or controlled by the applicant or project sponsor? 0 acres

4. Check all land uses that occur on, are adjoining or near the proposed action:

5. [JUrban [Z] Rural (non-agriculture) [ Industrial (] Commercial [J Residential (suburban)
(] Forest [/] Agriculture [] Aquatic [ Other(Specify):
[ Parkland

PPace | ol 3



5. Is the proposed action,

~<
wn

E

N/A

a. A permitted use under the zoning regulations?

b. Consistent with the adopted comprehensive plan?

HNE

it

6. Isthe proposed action consistent with the predominant character of the existing built or natural landscape?

YES

[]

7. Isthe site of the proposed action located in, or does it adjoin, a state listed Critical Environmental Area?

If Yes, identify:

~<
wn

E

]

8. a. Will the proposed action result in a substantial increase in traffic above present levels?
b. Are public transportation services available at or near the site of the proposed action?

c. Are any pedestrian accommeodations or bicycle routes available on or near the site of the proposed
action?

<
[72]

E

[

9. Does the proposed action meet or exceed the state energy code requirements?

If the proposed action will exceed requirements, describe design features and technologies:

Renewable Pholovoltaic Energy Technology

NN NENEINE N

~<

ES

[]

10. Will the proposed action connect to an existing public/private water supply? NO | YES
If No, describe method for providing potable water: D
11. Will the proposed action connect to existing wastewater utilities? NO | YES

If No, describe method for providing wastewater treatment:

[

12. a. Does the project site contain, or is it substantially contiguous to, a building, archaeological site, or district
which is listed on the National or State Register of Historic Places, or that has been determined by the
Commissioner of the NYS Office of Parks, Recreation and Historic Preservation to be eligible for listing on the
State Register of Historic Places?

b. Ts the project site, or any portion of it, located in or adjacent to an area designated as sensitive for
archaeological sites on the NY State Historic Preservation Office (SHPO) archaeological site inventory?

=
w

E

N

N

13. a. Does any portion of the site of the proposed action, or lands adjoining the proposed action, contain
wetlands or other waterbodies regulated by a federal, state or local agency?

b. Would the proposed action physically alter, or encroach into, any existing wetland or waterbody?

If Yes, identify the wetland or waterbody and extent of alterations in square feet or acres:

~
e
7]

LI




14. Identify the typical habitat types that occur on, or are likely to be found on the project site. Check all that apply:

[Shoreline [/] Forest [] Agricultural/grasslands [} Early mid-successional
[Jwetland [] Urban [] Suburban

15. Does the site of the proposed action contain any species of animal, or associated habitats, listed by the State or
Federal government as threatened or endangered?

o
7]

E

L]

16. Is the project site located in the 100-year flood plan?

<

ES

[]

17. Will the proposed action create storm water discharge, either from point or non-point sources?
If Yes,

a.  Will storm water discharges flow to adjacent properties?

b. Wil storm water discharges be directed to established conveyance systems (runoff and storm drains)?
If Yes, briefly describe:

=<

ES

NN EHINEINIE

18. Does the proposed action include construction or other activities that would result in the impoundment of water NO | YES
or other liquids (e.g., retention pond, waste lagoon, dam)?
If Yes, explain the purpose and size of the impoundment: D
19. Has the site of the proposed action or an adjoining property been the location of an active or closed solid waste | NO | YES
management facility?
If Yes, describe: I:'
20.Has the site of the proposed action or an adjoining property been the subject of remediation (ongoing or NO | YES

completed) for hazardous waste?
If Yes, describe:

I CERTIFY THAT THE INFORMATION PROVIDED ABOVE IS TRUE AND ACCURATE TO THE BEST OF

MY KNOWLEDGE

Applicant/sponsor/name; Alex Martin: Kasselman Solar, LLC. Date: 3/6/2024

Signature: a&//’& mmﬂz Title: Permit Coordinator

PRINT FORM Page 3 0f 3




EAF Mapper Summary Report Friday, July 14, 2023 12:39 PM

Disclaimer: The EAF Mapper is a screening tool intended to assist
project sponsors and reviewing agencies in preparing an environmental
assessment form (EAF). Not ali questions asked in the EAF are
answered by the EAF Mapper. Additional information on any EAF
question can be obtained by consulting the EAF Warkbooks. Although
the EAF Mapper provides the most up-to-date digital data available to
DEC, you may also need to contact local or other data sources in order
to obtain data not provided by the Mapper. Digital data is not a
substitute for agency determinations.

Bone Mg b Monipe=
Kinderhook
Toronto
Hamiikean Reshaster
<ty Buttay
L.}.hany
. o - e Hprung
e souroEn B 9ERE Gae s L ERD dewweent LIRE é] -
COREFE Leor UGS e op TEEVEMT R Lo b G BB Fue bl o ROUR | L
e b b B emips T Tladard LLATS oAt b e ge . N T i DT L i T AN

' S AL TR L3 ToMee o o AERE Groya PRENYENGeo oo

; i Pl lsntish

Part 1 / Question 7 [Critical Environmentai No
Area)

Part 1 / Question 12a [National or State Yes
Register of Historic Places or State Eligible
Sites]

Part 1 / Question 12b [Archeological Sites] Yes

Part 1 / Question 13a [Wetlands or Other Yes - Digital mapping information on local and federal wetlands and
Regulated Waterbodies] waterbodies is known to be incomplete. Refer to EAF Workbook.

Part 1 / Question 15 [Threatened or No
Endangered Animal]

Part 1 / Question 16 [100 Year Flood Plain]  Digital mapping data are not available or are incomplete. Refer to EAF
Workbook.

Part 1 / Question 20 [Remediation Site] No

Short Environmental Assessment Form - EAF Mapper Summary Report



COLUMBIA COUNTY - STATE OF NEW YORK
HOLLY C. TANNER, COUNTY CLERK
560 Warren Street, Hudson, New York 12634

COUNTY CLERK'S RECCORDING PAGE

**THIS PAGE IS PART OF THE DOCUMENT — DO NOT DETACH™"

AR

BOOK/PAGE: 876 / 168
INSTRUMENT #: 20180010456
Receipt#: 483264

Clerk: JL

Rec Date: 11/07/2018 03:18:15 PM

poc Grp: D

Descrip: DEED (NON RES)

Num Pgs: 3

Rec'd Frm: SNEERINGER MONAHAN PROVOST
REDGRAVE

Partyl: EMPIRE LIVESTOCK MARKETING LIC
Party2: KINDERHOOK FARM LLC
Tovin: CHATHAM

55.-1-33

rRecord and Return Yo:

FREEMAN HOWARD PC

441 EAST ALLEN STREET
PO BOX 1328

HUDSON NY 12534

BOX 15

Recording:

Cover Page 5.00
Recording Fee 30.00
Cultural Ed 14.25
Records Management - Coun 1.00
Records Management - Stat 4.75
TP584 5.00
cc supplemental Tax Form 5.00
RP5217 All others - State 241.00
RP5217 county 9.00
Sub Total: 315.00
Transfer Tax

Transfer Tax - State 1702.00
Transfer Tax - Columbia C 851.00
sub Total: "2553.00
Total: 12868.00

sv%#% NOTICE: THIS IS NOT A BILL **%¥

szexx Transfer Tax =%9%«
Transfer 1ax #: 639
Transfer lax
consideration: 425283.00

rransfer Tax - State 1702.00
Transfer Tax - Columbia C 851.00
Total: ~72553.00

WARNING*®=?
* 4 Infurmation may change during the verification
process and may not be reflected on this page.

-\%udc.’f‘cum

Helly ¢, lanner
Colunbia County Clerh



-

sxecetnd by

Srar fard B - Aacgem 2 ke Dreed with Vot wowns 0 Coands 03 S vidugl or Corpesution N

Lt wriiger Lionahan Prevost

S e . ‘ . arave Tite Agency, Inc.
THIS INDEFN FURE. made thisH day M e Y
S INDE N TURE. made thisd? Yy of (T2 g A et gled | OIS

BETWEEN

Empire Livestock Marketing. L1.C, a New Yark limited liability company and successor by merger to.Fmpice
Livestock Marketing. Inc., 8 New York corporation f/k‘a Elm Acquisition Corp. having an &ddrei .1L 5001
Brizteafictd Parkway, Last Syvacuse, New York 13057,

party of the st part. and '
Kinderhook Farm, LLC having an address a1 1958 County Road 21, Valatie, New York 12184,
pitrty of the second pars,

WIETNESSETH, that the party of the Biest part, in consideratior of Ten Dollars (310 0g), lawful money of the United
States. and ather good and valuable consideration paid by the pary of the second part does heeeby grant and releasce
unto the party ol the secord part. the heirs or successars and assigns of the party of the secoad part torever.

ALL those three cerain pieces or parcels of land situate, Bving, and being & the TFown of Chatham, Colunbiy
County, New York, shown on map, compiled from survey made by Wilbur A, Obemge, and bounded and desenibed ax
fullows:

PARCHT ONIL:

BEGINNING at a point marked by an iron pipe driven in the ground en the southerly side of New York State
Highway, knowi as Route 203, the said point of beginning being approximately 125 feet LnNcrl\ of the Khine Kill,
thenee runring along fence and stone wail alang southerly ling of Parcel Three south 512 29" east TH3.TS feet 1o an
iron pin driven in the ground at the northeasterly cemer of parcel berein deseribed; thence south 317 19 west $8X.IA
feet along fence line ta an iron pipe driven in the ground: thence sowh 277 02" west 17520 feet along aforesaid fence
tine to an iron pipe driven in the ground at comer of land of Herman Picex: thence aliong land of aferementioned
ek torth 387 S8 west THHLO0 feet o an iron pipe dfiven 8 the eround: thence centinuing in the same directicn
SO.00 feet to the center of Kline Kitl: thence the lolowing five courses along the center of the Kline Kill: north 617
T st 62 37 feel: north 427 57 cast 13817 teey aorth 637 327 cust 181,23 et north 357 05 cast [81.69 teet and
porth 2707 ast 230,32 feet: thence south 599 3P gast 160,60 feet along the seutherly side ol atorementioned Rovte
203 1e the point or place of beginning. Contatning by calcilation 15435 geres of land. be the sanic more or Jess.

PARCLL TWO:

BFCGINNING at a point marked by an iren pipe driven in the ground on southerly side of State Highway known as
Route 203, said peint of beginning beigg approximately 820 feet casterly of the Kline Kill; thence running aleng the
southerly side of said Route 203, south 56° 117 cast 20000 fect o an iron pipe driven in the pround wt the
porthensterly vortier of parvel herein deseribed. thence south 317 719" west 34302 teet along land now or formierdy of
Clurence L. oand Sara S Baikey. 10 ag icon pipe driven in the ground at the southeasierly corner of pareel herein
deseribed; thence north 56° 17 wiest 400 00 feet alung land of aforementioned Batley to an ron pipe driven m the
ground: thence north 317 19" cagt 833,02 teet aleng easterly line of Parcels One and Fhree now or formerly of said
Biiey G the pointor place of beginning. Containing by cuiculation S 800 yeres of Tand, be the sume more o fess

PARCEL THREL:
BLEGINNING at a point murhed by an iron pipe deiven in the ground on the soutberly side of State Highway known s
Route 203, sl poil‘.! of het'in'ﬁu" being approaitately F25 feet easterly of the Kline Kibl thence running aleng the
southerly side ol sad Route 203 south 607 207 ¢ist 176.06 feet to an iron pipe driven in the ground: thence continuing
along the somberiy side of mcd State Highway soath S67 1 east 322 (0 teet o an iseon pipe diiven i the groumd it
e norghwesder!y corner of Parcel Two now or tormerly ot Clarenee Looand Sura S, Baaley s thenee south 31 197 wedt
THOD feet to am iron |)ll‘ driven in the pround at the sontheasterly comer ot parcel herein deseribed; thenee noativ 51
2P et 03,73 et along northeriy side of Farcel One, now or formerly of said Baley 1o, o the pomt ar place of
beeinaime. Containing by caleuiation 0.660 acres of land. be the same more or less.



Being the same premuses conveved by dved fom Linpire Livestoch Markcung Cooperanve, iﬂc o BT M Acguivtion
Coop. dawd December 31, 1w secoried n the Columbin Comaty Clerk's Office Januwv 17, 1995 in Beok '86 o
Deed- at paee 92, EEM Acquisition Corp. changed its name to Empire Livestoch Masketir, }m., mem: Livesteck
Murheting., LLO s the suceeskor by merger to Empire | ivestock Marketing, Tne .

TOGETHER with aifl right, title and interest of the party of the fina party it and o any sirects and soads apnin. the
above described premises 1o 1he center lines thereef,

TOGUTHER with the uppurtenaness an all the estate and rights of the party of the first part I to sabd prennaes,
i g par P ]

PO MAVE AND 10O HOLD the premises hercin czanted wnte the pun of the seeond pat. i hgirs oF SUSCRSSOTS
anil a<signs of the party of the second part foreyver,

AND e party of U et pant conensots tha the parv o the Ure gt as ot oag of suffered v whereby the
i P 3 )

ridd premiies laie deen monnberesd By way whateyer oweptas abiresind

AN the pasty of the first part, it complisnce with Section 13 of the Lion Law, oot that the party of the lirst
part will receive tie consideration of this com cvancs and will hold the Tight fa reesive suell consideration as a trusl
fund to be spplied fiest for the purmose of pising the epst of the improvemcntand i B apply the same first o the
pavitent of the cost of thz improvensent before usisig any part of the lo(ai [ the serme for any other purpees,

The sword “eiony” shall be construed as 1 read “purties’” whenever the seansc of ths indeninre 30 requires,

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, tic partv of the first part Tus Suly executed (bin deed the day and your tirt above
ST

Fmpire kivestock Marketing, LLC

———

1
- — \ s

i, T .
‘-‘.'- \ \\\- 1‘\'-’ : A

by e gy oW
Name: _;DQN]Q. -
Tides PRES 0BT, FARM SV IS

CTATE OF KANSAS, cOUN 1y oF W YBNDOTTE

ey the 2& v of OLDM' Jin the vear 2018 before me. the unduviigned, personally appeas -d
_H_ M L ‘.nmll\ kiown Lo me or proved 1o me on the basis ot satistictory evidoence

o the md: wdual (s) whose s s 1 Gard) subseribed 1o the within instrument and acknowledged 10 nie that
heshe/they executed the <ume 1 sther D gepactty(ics  and that by b hertheir signature(s) on the

instrument, the fndividualis) or the persor upon heial! of which the individualis) acied. exevuted the
instrument.
('.‘ V! 2
..} /7 (7 ,}W
ANN CATHERINE MARTINEZ | { (,ML;C[U / W\M/ Méfl
Notary Public-State of Karsz: Netary Public.

My Appt Expires 2{5@_@&1{ *

Record & Rewnt,

saul breciag. T

peeciman Hownrd, PO

Stk Alten Sereet, PO 3ox 1328
Pluddsona NY 12334

Culunbia County Box No, | ,)







SOZ-AN &%2T
$aeq

&
N
a

EOT-AN 6VZ2 =



08l IIVOS

b
02 0 3L

a7 wng Aueg wmpeuD g

N IS ——— Db Divie 555
Mo ,»

——— :seu) Avadalg] . BOZ minan FEis)

5 T ‘suL D v rp|

‘anzed el 55

FOZ SN0 s

peoz-iit Fon g IR T E RS AT R

1eieg

0T Inoy wms]
217 oy s
001 5201759

14NV LS Fd tanatoig By

e 081830 ) - Bunaey poNELes oZ 16000
auawdinb3 wayseny g Bupdcy waio

Sr2-ZL-0bZ-HBDI U] ABBuT eseydu3 812
50F 0LO-TW Y18 ONA Xv3d O SIS0 B2Y

66 Z+4 M) 0T v21s welshs

“8ljeeq 2e(n

8 :3N0Z
T2 'S3HOV WIOL
EC-I-SgN QIXVL
ALNNOD VIBWNT0D
WYHLYHD 40 NMOL

WANG IS

M2 o} Iaans PAYSEHC OB 09C0Id
+40 L133HS

153r0Nd NOLLY TIVLSN] ¥V10S
Q3LNNOW J00H
OT1'SWYVA HOOHYIANIN
NV1d 3118

vZ0Z WIbL UIB I ‘3eq

re—

L£0Z\ AN 'wEgeud
E0Z-AN 822
277 'suLed HOOLIGPUIY
:40 SIVH3E ND

$0ZZh AN "spusLRiy
2 9019 "AImpeoig 6.2
071 JEj0S URW|OEIEY
NY1d LIS 40 NOUVYAYATHd/LNYOINddY

uew|assey @m




oca-8Lb (815) - Y0ZZ) AN 'SPUEUS- Z *Bp|g ‘Aempeoig 627 - OT1 ‘1E[0S Uewjasse)) Gunasulbug g ubisaq Ad Jo 1010231 SUIA3LS HOS 1Aq pasedald ubiisag £Z0T 'UI9 Jeaquianon

a|npoly JielloAcioYd Jejos: ._

*oyloads aps RIE sjeqe
95 069 DIN Jad juawdinba Ad uo pesed ag o} s[BqE] |28l

*Joos 3y Jo Lipim pue Yibue) ayy inoyBnosyy
193 0G|, uey) J3jealb Jou sjBAIaju) |& papiacid ag jleys sAemuyjed
- shemyjed Joual| - 2'€'p0Z| UoNoBS U aousndwod uj ubisep Ad

188}
b 4O YIpIM Wit © 0) padnpa; 6q o} peyiwIed aq eys joas ay)
Jo sa8pa ay) punase Jojewuad JBaja 6y) 'sSe) o Jes) P52 St Buipling
3yy Jo Sixe Jys ey (uojdeox] - shemyied Jajalued — apod
and SAN Z0Z 84 JO |'E b0Z) UoNaag Y asuel(diwod uj ubisap Ad

ANIWAIdaNS
3002 WHOSINM SAN 0202 ONY O¥] 0202 ¥3d SADVYEL3S

“swe)shs
Ad 198 1) [bDZL] SAN J0 apeJ ei1d 0Z0T - 55920V do) jooy
|enuep(sa UON OZOZ a4} JO SUDHISS JUBAS|SS 0) SauaYpE ubiseq Ad

ZOXIZM
H 22 Wy3g-A
'SSNYL/AEILVY

(S) 66) :(S33493Q) HLNWIZY
0 ‘HO1ld 400y

Nad3 VNI LYIN
uonduosaq Jooy

Z€'99 :M3 Aeuy
WMEDEL 1SN Aoy

isUojsuUAM|Q ARIY Ad
1L @316aQ 04 - Bupjory paisejjeg +z 1004093
JJuawdinb3 Juawyoseny § Gupyoey wayshg|

SN-2-Z.-0b2-HA0I ou] ABlau3 aseydul gz
S0¥ 01D~ %18 ONA Mv3d 0 SiI8oD 8.2

S|IEjaq uonE(EIsU] puE 398(0ig

652t} :(MA) 0@ 221 Esmm_

2€0T1 AN ‘weyieyd

€0¢-AN 6¥cc
T UBWIES|D) 9AS)S
1J3INNOOSIQ JVIdSN - -~ i gy '
NILIWALING PN 0/2 0711 'swlied qooulspuly
30IAN3S WYOINLO31I -

HOVELIS ¥ALIWINTD &

uewassey




e P

omn w:..:m.n_ w_oomhovr.__v_ h
LE-L- 53

05-1-95




powered by

J'a.anTum (TS

385-405

ENDURING HIGH
PERFORMANCE

O 9 Q 0 B

TOP BRAND ¥

T
\-. ({210
2020 /
L P
N
{7 cEAMANY'S HMOST T
[ POPULAR PIOVIDER
P S Q CELLS

O

s ANETE 2 TR TS SRR
Q.ANTUM DUO Z Technology with zero gap cell layout
boosts module efficiency up to 20.9%.

-

STAOUATIVE ALL WEATHER TECHIIRL LY

Optirnal yields, whatever the weather with excellent
low-light and temperalure behaviour.

ET LG IS PRAFS R AN CE
Long-term yield security with Anti LID Technology, Anti PID
Technology?, Hot-Spot Protect and Traceable Quality Tra.Q™,

SE RIS,

i B B i
R e b LA R

High-tech aluminium alloy frame, certified for
high snow (5400 Pa) and wind loads (4000 Pa).

B o B R U ERT
inclusive 12-year product warranty and 25-year
linear performance warranty?.

STATE CF 15 £ 07 R0 DuLE TR 0L aeY
Q.ANTUM DUQ combines cutting edge cell separation
and innovative wiring with Q. ANTUM Technology.

: APT test conditions according to [EC/TS 62804-1:2015, method B (-1500V, 168h)
? See data sheet on rear for turther information

THE IDEAL SOLUTION FOR:

Rooftop arrays on
residential buildings

Engineered in Germany

PRELIMINARY

CELLS



1879mm x 1045 mm x 32mm (including frame)

F————————— 1 )y —
220kg H r R I T
3.2mm thermally pre-stressed glass vith 1 = T == | A
anti-reflection technology BT — S M———
Composite film ) Vrae -
Black anodised aluminium "'"Il
6 x 22 menocrystalline QANTUM saiar helf cells o Widen

53-101 mm x 32-60 mm x 15-18 wm
Protection class IP67, with bypass ciodes —e

4mm2 Solar cable; #)21200mm, 321200 mm - o

—
Staubli MC4, I-lenwha Q CELLS HQC4; IP68 & e llaurtng dals {DETAIL A) +

POWER CLASS 385 380 395 400 405
Pue W) 385 380 395 400 405
lee 4] 11.04 107 1110 1114 11.17
Vee v 4519 4523 45.27 45.30 45.34
hape [A] 1059 10.65 1071 1077 10.83
Visee ™ 36,36 36.62 36.88 37.13 37.39
] %) 2196 219.9 2201 22_0_.4 - 2_20.6
Pian (W} 2888 2928 296 3 3001 303.8
lec [A] 890 892 8.95 8.97 9.00
Vec v] 4262 4265 42 69 4272 4276
o, [A] 8,35 841 846 851 8.57
Ve V] 3459 3481 35.03 35.25 35646
‘Measurement tolerances Py £3%; lse; Vo £5% at STC: 1000W/m?,25£2°C, AM 1 5 sccording to IEC 60904-3 - 2800W/m2, NMOI. spectrum AM 15
Q CELLS PERFORMANCE WARRANTY PERFORMANCE AT LOW IRRADIANCE
l= 1T '
At least 98% of nominal power dur- : '
ing first year. Theresfter max 0.5% ! 4
") B T LT T T PP PP degradation por yaar. At least 93 5% ) (S | (RG-SO
| of nominal power up to 10 years At - H
least 86 % of nominal power up to ' i '
bl b 25 years £7Y S p— b i e e A vl
1 [}
5 All data within measurement tolar- ) y
! ances. Full warranties in accordance 1t ' | W —
{ with the warranly terms of the = b SoR .. 4009
O i ot s b | Q CELLS sales organisation of your
[ " in " £ i respective country.
et i bl ctr o ST Typlcal module performance undar low iradiance conditions in

comparison to STC conditions (25°C, 1000W/nw).
TEMPERATURE COEFFICIENTS

! / : a B [%/K] -027
Y NMOT {°Cl 43+3
S
W] 1000 MV mnrdule ohigsdiceion Class Il
1, (A) 20 A NG as i GRS G730 C/TYPE2
[Pa] 3600/2660 —40°C - +85°C

[Pa] 5400/4000

Y BT TS S W
VAL A

EC 61215:2016:
1EC 61730 2016

This dJata sheat complies " A.
with D'N EN 50230 E“&E

v v KoM
10 1111320277

Note: Installation instructions must be tollowed Sce the installation and operating manual or contact our technlcal service department for further information on approved installation and
use of this product

Hanwha Q CELLS GmbH
Sonnerallee 17-21, 06766 Bitterleld-Wolfen, Germeny | -« +49 (0)3494 66 93-23444 1 :  : +42(0)3484 66 93-23000 't sales@q-cells com|' = :www g-cells com

Engineered in Germany ce LLS

Specilizat-ons subjecl io lochnizal changes & G CELLS Q PEAK DUO BLK ML-G10 385-105_2021-02 RevOL CN



PROJECT TITLE

ECOFOOT2+
NAME Kinderhook Farms
ADDRESS 2249 NY-203, Chatham, NY 12037, USA
CITY, STATE Chatham, NY
MODULE Hanwha/Q-Cells Q.Peak Duo BLK ML-G10 405W

U-BUILDER PROJECT REPORT

APPLICATION VERSION: 6.1.1
PROJECT VERSION: 0.0.43

LAST UPDATED

Nov. 6, 2023

ORIGINALLY CREATED

Nowv. 3, 2023

PROJECT ID

47F33410

Designed by scott.stevens@kasselmansolar.com
EcoFoot2+

Hanwha/Q-Cells

278 - Q.Peak Duo BLK ML-G10 405W

8593 ft2

112,59 KW

NOTE: Installation of the project is intended to happen within the year of project designed in UBuilder. If it's past ane year please

rerun the design or contact Unirac Engineering Services.

INSTALLATION AND DESIGN PLAN

Roof Area 1




Roof Area 1/ Roof Area 1 - Array 1

LEGEND

Modute
' , ; Standard corner bay with CMU block count

Supplementat bay with CMU block count

NOTE

Blocks above with values greater than 3 require extra ballast bays, except north-most bays which require extra bays for values greater than 6,
The proper number of bays are provided in the Bill of Materials, The installer must install these extra bays as near to the indicated location as
possible,



i I AR e
‘.“ 4 ek *

Installer-Preferred for Low-Slope Roofs

Melistisle

[ fe IS £
TN S i Tl ace 2 10 0h 2t [} CIGTHE 3| 3
o {hYn |0 te Wzt e ' Jei E=ales
alderaihin e thES et ot Tor i R e P e T E e T
GarHes| ulErdeiRayziliefzinzist

Lipuiniaie

washers: & = siiilelts Tyt Sipiselries
- A - T > .
e '-_’ - [ It fias iy - ?ijél L .'



Unbeatable, Right Qut of the Box.
No other racking products install flat roof arrays better than EcoFoot2+

Racking Solution. Installers prefer EcoFoot2+ because it's fast, simple, and
durable. The line-up is unbeatable:

» Ready-to-go, preassembled components and simple installation
* No PV panel prep required: bases self-align

» Low-effort roof layout, just two chalk lines required

* No training required, 5-minute learning curve

N G "
S g ae Regee e RN S
St O A A

System Benefits

¢ Low part count

« Rapid system deployment

* Preassembled Universal Clamp
* Increased design flexibility

* More ballast capacity

= Simplified logistics

« Ship up to 50kW per pallet

Validation Summary
* Certified to UL2703 Fire
Class A for Type | and Il modules
* Certified to UL2703
* Grounding and Bonding
* Wind tunnel tested to 150mph
* SEAOC seismic compliant
« CFD and structurally tested
* DNV GL rated at 13.5 panels
per installer-hour

/7, “{j’;f
iy / iy

3 , ";_ /;"/ )

i |

Wire Management Built-In

[EcoFoob2e Sales Shieekna 1121519 0



NEW BUSINESS



UHU
Certified Public Accountants

45 Five Mile Woods Road
Catskill, NY 12414

Phone 518-943-4502
Fax 518-943-6532
Web  www.uhy-us.com

INDEPENDENT ACCOUNTANT’S REPORT
ON APPLYING AGREED-UPON PROCEDURES

To the Town of Chatham Town Supervisor and Board Members:

We have performed the procedures enumerated below on the Town of Chatham Justice Court
records for the year ended December 31, 2020. The Town of Chatham Town Justices are responsible
for the Justice Court’s records.

The Town of Chatham Town Supervisor has agreed to and acknowledged that the procedures
performed are appropriate to meet the intended purpose pursuant to the Uniform Justice Court Act
2019-a for the Town of Chatham Justice Court records for the year-ended December 31, 2020. This
report may not be suitable for any other purpose. The procedures performed may not address all of
the items of interest to a user of this report and may not meet the needs of all users of this report
and, such as, users are responsible for determining whether the procedures performed are
appropriate for their purposes.

The procedures and associated findings are as follows:

1. Obtain the Town Justices” cashbook report for two months, verify that there are no receipts
that are out of order or missing. If a receipt is missing determine that there is proper
documentation as to why it is missing.

Findings: Obtained reports for January and November 2020 for both Justices. Obtained proper
documentation for the following voided receipts.
o For Justice Forster for November 2020 2 receipts were missing from the cashbook

report; B16102, B16140.
¢ For Justice Rosen for November 2020 1 receipt was missing from the cashbook report;
R3726.

2. Agree that the reportable money received plus the bail applied on the cashbook reports for
the two months equals what was reported on the corresponding NYS AC-1030 reports.
Findings: No exceptions.

3. Trace 8 receipts reported for the two months on the cashbook reports to the corresponding

NYS AC-1030 reports and agree receipts to Town Court Justice docket dispositions and case
files.

An Independent Member of Urbach Hacker Young Limited



UH

LLP

Certified Public Accountants

Findings: No exceptions.

Agree that all cash deposits listed on the cashbook report for the two months are deposited
timely, within 72 hours, tracing them to the bank statements.

Findings: Obtained reports for January and November 2020 for both Justices.
e For Justice Forster for November, receipts from 11/6/20 for $175 weren't deposited

until 11/18/20, an 8 business day lag.

e For Justice Rosen for November 2020 receipts from 11/9/20 for $525 weren't deposited
until 11/18/20, a 7 business day lag. And, receipts from 11/6/20 for $225 weren't
deposited until 11/18/20, an 8 business day lag.

Agree that for the two months selected that the bank reconciliations reconcile to the cash
register, mathematically recalculate the reconciliations, and verify that they are reconciled
within 30 days after bank statements are received.

Findings: No exceptions.

Agree that for the two months selected that the reconciliations of any remaining funds were
completed, agree the balance to supporting documentation and mathematically recalculate the
reconciliations of the remaining funds.

Findings: No exceptions.

Agree that for the two months selected that the NYS AC-1030 reports were filed to the Justice
Court Fund timely (by the 10th of the following month).

Findings: No exceptions.

Agree that for the two months selected that pre-numbered checks are used, and the issued
checks were signed by the Justices.

Findings: No exceptions.

Inquire if the court had received any notices regarding late reporting. If yes, inquire why the
reports were late and what corrective actions were taken.

Findings: No exceptions.

We were engaged by the Town of Chatham Supervisor to perform this agreed-upon procedures
engagement and conducted our engagement in accordance with attestation standards established by
the American Institute of Certified Public Accountants. We were not engaged to and did not
conduct an examination or review engagement, the objective of which would be the expression of an
opinion or conclusion, respectively on the Justice Court records and reports. Accordingly, we do not



UHY Y
Certified Public Accountants

express such an opinion or conclusion. Had we performed additional procedures; other matters
might have come to our attention that would have been reported to you.

We are required to be independent of Town of Chatham Justices and to meet our other ethical
responsibilities, in accordance with the relevant ethical requirements related to our agreed-upon
procedures engagement.

This report is intended solely for the information and use of the Town of Chatham Supervisor and
Town Board and is not intended to be and should not be used by anyone other than those specified
parties.

l[{/y LLr

Catskill, New York
February 28, 2024



UHU
Certified Public Accountants

45 Five Mile Woods Road
Catskill, NY 12414

Phone 518-943-4502
Fax 518-943-6532
Web  www.uhy-us.com

INDEPENDENT ACCOUNTANT'S REPORT
ON APPLYING AGREED-UPON PROCEDURES

To the Town of Chatham Town Supervisor and Board Members:

We have performed the procedures enumerated below on the Town of Chatham Justice Court
records for the year ended December 31, 2021. The Town of Chatham Town Justices are responsible
for the Justice Court’s records.

The Town of Chatham Town Supervisor has agreed to and acknowledged that the procedures
performed are appropriate to meet the intended purpose pursuant to the Uniform Justice Court Act
2019-a for the Town of Chatham Justice Court records for the year-ended December 31, 2021. This
report may not be suitable for any other purpose. The procedures performed may not address all of
the items of interest to a user of this report and may not meet the needs of all users of this report
and, such as, users are responsible for determining whether the procedures performed are
appropriate for their purposes.

The procedures and associated findings are as follows:

1. Obtain the Town Justices’ cashbook report for two months, verify that there are no receipts
that are out of order or missing. If a receipt is missing determine that there is proper
documentation as to why it is missing.

Findings: Obtained reports for June and October 2021 for each Justice. Obtained proper
documentation for the following voided receipts.
e For Justice Forster for October 2021 2 receipts were missing from the cashbook report;

B16953, B16954.
e For Justice Rosen for June 2021 1 receipt was missing from the cashbook report; R4262.
e For Justice Rosen for October 2021 3 receipts were missing from the cashbook report;
R4447, R4457 and R4482.

2. Agree that the reportable money received plus the bail applied on the cashbook reports for
the two months equals what was reported on the corresponding NYS AC-1030 reports.

Findings: No exceptions.

An Independent Member of Urbach Hacker Young Limited



H LLP
Certified Public Accountants

3. Trace 8 receipts reported for the two months on the cashbook reports to the corresponding
NYS AC-1030 reports and agree receipts to Town Court Justice docket dispositions and case
files.

Findings: No exceptions.

4. Agree that all cash deposits listed on the cashbook report for the two months are deposited
timely, within 72 hours, tracing them to the bank statements.

Findings: No exceptions.

5. Agree that for the two months selected that the bank reconciliations reconcile to the cash
register, mathematically recalculate the reconciliations, and verify that they are reconciled
within 30 days after bank statements are received.

Findings: No exceptions.

6. Agree that for the two months selected that the reconciliations of any remaining funds were
completed, agree the balance to supporting documentation and mathematically recalculate the
reconciliations of the remaining funds.

Findings: No exceptions.

7. Agree that for the two months selected that the NYS AC-1030 reports were filed to the Justice
' Court Fund timely (by the 10th of the following month).

Findings: No exceptions.

8. Agree that for the two months selected that pre-numbered checks are used, and the issued
checks were signed by the Justices.

Findings: No exceptions.

& Inquire if the court had received any notices regarding late reporting. If yes, inquire why the
reports were late and what corrective actions were taken.

Findings: No exceptions.

We were engaged by the Town of Chatham Supervisor to perform this agreed-upon procedures
engagement and conducted our engagement in accordance with attestation standards established by
the American Institute of Certified Public Accountants. We were not engaged to and did not
conduct an examination or review engagement, the objective of which would be the expression of an
opinion or conclusion, respectively on the Justice Court records and reports. Accordingly, we do not
express such an opinion or conclusion. Had we performed additional procedures; other matters
might have come to our attention that would have been reported to you.



UHU &
Certified Public Accountants

We are required to be independent of Town of Chatham Justices and to meet our other ethical
responsibilities, in accordance with the relevant ethical requirements related to our agreed-upon
procedures engagement.

This report is intended solely for the information and use of the Town of Chatham Supervisor and

Town Board and is not intended to be and should not be used by anyone other than those specified
parties.

l[{/y LLp

Catskill, New York
February 28, 2024



UHU =
Certified Public Accountants

45 Five Mile Woods Road
Catskill, NY 12414

Phone 518-943-4502
Fax 518-943-6532
Web  www.uhy-us.com

INDEPENDENT ACCOUNTANT’S REPORT
ON APPLYING AGREED-UPON PROCEDURES

To the Town of Chatham Town Supervisor and Board Members:

We have performed the procedures enumerated below on the Town of Chatham Justice Court
records for the year ended December 31, 2022. The Town of Chatham Town Justices are responsible
for the Justice Court’s records. '

The Town of Chatham Town Supervisor has agreed to and acknowledged that the procedures
performed are appropriate to meet the intended purpose pursuant to the Uniform Justice Court Act
2019-a for the Town of Chatham Justice Court records for the year-ended December 31, 2022. This
report may not be suitable for any other purpose. The procedures performed may not address all of
the items of interest to a user of this report and may not meet the needs of all users of this report
and, such as, users are responsible for determining whether the procedures performed are
appropriate for their purposes.

The procedures and associated findings are as follows:

1. Obtain the Town Justices’ cashbook report for two months, verify that there are no receipts
that are out of order or missing. If a receipt is missing determine that there is proper
documentation as to why it is missing.

Findings: Obtained reports for June and July 2022 for each Justice. Obtained proper

documentation for missing receipts.
o For Justice Rosen for June 2022 1 receipt was missing from the cashbook report; R5074.

e For Justice Rosen for July 2022 1 receipt was missing from the cashbook report; R5108.

2 Agree that the reportable money received plus the bail applied on the cashbook reports for
the two months equals what was reported on the corresponding NYS AC-1030 reports.
Findings: No exceptions.

3. Trace 8 receipts reported for the two months on the cashbook reports to the corresponding
NYS AC-1030 reports and agree receipts to Town Court Justice docket dispositions and case

files.

Findings: No exceptions.

An Independent Member of Urbach Hacker Young Limited



HY
Certified Public Accountants

4. Agree that all cash deposits listed on the cashbook report for the two months are deposited
timely, within 72 hours, tracing them to the bank statements.

Findings: No exceptions.

5. Agree that for the two months selected that the bank reconciliations reconcile to the cash
register, mathematically recalculate the reconciliations, and verify that they are reconciled
within 30 days after bank statements are received.

Findings: No exceptions.

6. Agree that for the two months selected that the reconciliations of any remaining funds were
completed, agree the balance to supporting documentation and mathematically recalculate the
reconciliations of the remaining funds.

Findings: No exceptions.

7 Agree that for the two months selected that the NYS AC-1030 reports were filed to the Justice
Court Fund timely (by the 10th of the following month).

Findings: No exceptions.

8. Agree that for the two months selected that pre-numbered checks are used, and the issued
checks were signed by the Justices.

Findings: No exceptions.

9. Inquire if the court had received any notices regarding late reporting. If yes, inquire why the
reports were late and what corrective actions were taken.

Findings: No exceptions.

We were engaged by the Town of Chatham Supervisor to perform this agreed-upon procedures
engagement and conducted our engagement in accordance with attestation standards established by
the American Institute of Certified Public Accountants. We were not engaged to and did not
conduct an examination or review engagement, the objective of which would be the expression of an
opinion or conclusion, respectively on the Justice Court records and reports. Accordingly, we do not
express such an opinion or conclusion. Had we performed additional procedures; other matters
might have come to our attention that would have been reported to you.

We are required to be independent of Town of Chatham Justices and to meet our other ethical
responsibilities, in accordance with the relevant ethical requirements related to our agreed-upon
procedures engagement.



UH LLP
Certified Public Accountants

This report is intended solely for the information and use of the Town of Chatham Supervisor and
Town Board and is not intended to be and should not be used by anyone other than those specified
parties.

l[{/y LLr

Catskill, New York
February 28, 2024



LEASE AGREEMENT FOR OFFICE SPACE

THIS LEASE AGREEMENT, is made and entered into on August 1, 2024 through July 31, 2025
(“Effective Date”), by and between the Village of Chatham (“Lessor”) and the Town of Chatham
(*“Lessee”).

WHEREAS, Lessor is the owner of the Tracy Memorial Building (“Building”) located in Chatham, New
York;

WHEREAS, Lessee desires to lease space in the Building to conduct its Town Court, and related
activities; and

WHEREAS, the Lessor and Lessee wish to enter into an agreement for the lease of a portion of the
Building,

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual covenants herein contained, Lessor and Lessee
agree as follows:

1. The Premises. Lessor hereby agrees to lease to Lessee, and Lessee hereby leases from
Lessor, the following described premises:

a) Approximately 2,200 square feet of floor space on the second floor of the Building
located at 77 Main Street, Chatham, New York. The demised area includes office and
courtroom space. The Lessee shall have exclusive possession and control of the office
space at all times, and exclusive possession and control of the courtroom space on
Town Court nights, and shall have the top priority for use at all other times. The Lessor
reserves the right to use the courtroom space during other times with prior notice to the
Lessee.

9 Use. Lessee shall use and occupy said Premises for the purpose of conducting the Town of
Chatham’s Town court and all business related thereto, and for other reason.

3. Term. The term of this Lease shall commence on the Effective Date and shall continue for a
period of one (1) year thereafter, unless sooner terminated as provided in this Lease.

4. Rent. Lessee agrees to pay Lessor a minimum menthly rent during the term of this Lease in
the amount of $1,650 per month, payable on the first day of each month during the term of
this Lease. Any rent not paid within ten (10) days of the due date shall be subject to a five
percent (5%) late charge.

S. Parking. Itis agreed that Lessee shall have the exclusive right to use two (2) parking spaces
without charge, throughout the original term of this lease and any renewal term. These
designated parking spaces will be marked with the name Town of Chatham and shall be
located behind the Building.



6.

10.

Alterations by Lessee. Lessee agrees that there will be no alterations to the Premises without
the prior written consent of the Lessor. Lessor has heretofore agreed that the Lessee shall be
and hereby is authorized to install security doors to the office space and shall install other
necessary security devices and fixtures, at the Lessee’s expense.

Lien. Lessee agrees to keep Premises free from mechanics, materialmen’s judgment, tax and
other liens arising out of any construction or other work done for, or debts incurred by Lessee.

Indemnification. Lessee hereby agrees to indemnify, defend, and hold harmless Lessor, its
successors, assigns, subsidiaries, directors, officers, agents and employees from and against
any and all damage, loss, liability or expense including, but not limited to, attorney’s fees and
legal costs suffered by same directly or by reason of any claim, suit or judgment brought by
or in favor of any person or persons for damage, loss or expense due to, but not limited to,
bodily injury, including death arising any time therefrom and property damage sustained by
such person or persons which arises out of, is occasioned by or attributable to the use or
occupancy of the Premises by the Lessee, the acts or omission of the Lessee, its subtenants,
licensees, concessionaires, agents, employees or any other contractors brought onto the
Premises by the Lessee, or any breach or default in the performance of any obligation on
Lessee’s part to the performed under the terms of this Lease, except to the extent caused by
the gross negligence or the willful misconduct of Lessor, its employees and agents.

Insurance. Lessee shall, at Lessee’s own expense, obtain and keep in full force, and effect,
during the term of this lease for the protection of Lessee and Lessor (as additional insured)
against any claim for bodily injury and or property damage arising out of the use and
occupancy of the Premises and all areas appurtenant thereto. Lessee shall furnish to Lessor a
Certificate of Commercial General Liability Insurance, and a Certificate of Renewal of such
insurance from time to time throughout the term of this Lease, insuring Lessees against
liability for personal injury in the amount of at least $1,000,000 per accident, and against
liability for property damage in the amount of $1,000,000 per occurrence. Such Certificates
shall state that the insured’s brokers or insurers will use their best efforts to provide the
certificate holder with thirty (30) days advance notice of the cancellation non-renewal or
material modification of the coverage’s evidenced herein. Lessee shall assure that Lessor is
named as an additional insured on such policy or policies of insurance. All requirements in
this paragraph shall be reciprocal and the Lessor shall maintain the same insurance and shall
have the same duties and responsibilities to the Lessee as set forth hereinabove.

Fixtures and Personal Property. Any trade fixtures, equipment, or personal property
permanently installed in or permanently attached to the Premises, Building, or Parcel by or at
the expense of Lessee shall be and remain the property of Lessee and Lessor agrees that Lessee
shall have the right to remove any and all of such property prior to the expiration or
termination of this Lease, so long as no default exists under this Lease. Lessee agrees that it
will, at its expense repair any damage occasioned to the Premises by reason of the removal of
any of its trade fixtures, equipment, or other permanently affixed personal property as
described above.



11. Repairs and Maintenance. Lessor agrees that is shall, at its cost and expense, maintain the
parking area described in Paragraph 3, the Parcel on which the Premises are located, the
Building in which the Premises are located, and the Premises, and every part of them, in good,
first class condition, including but not limited to plowing and maintenance of the parking area,
except that Lessee shall make any repairs or replacements necessitated by damage caused by
the Lessee or its employees, agents, invitees, or visitors. Provided, however, if Lessee fails
to make any such repairs or replacements promptly, Lessor may, at its sole option, make the
repairs or replacements after at least ten (10) days prior written notice to Lessee, and Lessee
shall repay the cost of the repairs or replacements to Lessor on demand.

12. Entry by Landlord. Subject to Lessee’s security and safety, Lessor reserves, and shall during
reasonable business hours have, the right to enter the Premises to inspect the same, to exhibit
said Premises to prospective lenders, purchasers or tenants, to make repairs, alterations and
improvements, or use the courtroom area when not in use by Lessee, as described in Section
1. Unless in an emergency, Lessor shall first give reasonable notice of its intent to enter the
Premises and obtain Lessee’s prior consent. In the event of an emergency, Lessor shall have
the right to use any and all means which Lessor may deem proper to open all doors in order
to obtain entry to the Premises without liability to Tenant except for any failure to exercise
due care for Lessee’s personal property located on such Premises.

13. Default. The following shall constitute events of default:

a) If Lessee shall fail to pay any rent on the due date thereof and such default shall
continue for a period of ten (10) days after written notice by Lessor to Lessee of
such default, or

b) Lessee shall fail to comply with any term, provision or covenant of the Lease and
shall fail to remedy such failure within twenty (20) days after notice from Lessor
or if such failure complained of shall be of a nature that the same cannot be
completely cured and remedied within said twenty (20) day period, and Lessee shall
not (i) promptly upon the giving by Lessor of such notice advise Lessor of Lessee’s
intention to institute all steps necessary to remedy such situation, and (ii) promptly
institute and thereafter diligently pursue all steps necessary to remedy the same.

¢) Ifan action or proceeding is commenced by or against the Lessee under the federal
bankruptcy laws or any other federal or state insolvency laws and in the event of an
involuntary action or proceeding the same is not discharged within sixty (60) days
after commencement.

d) If Lessee fails to maintain the insurance policy and coverage(s) required herein
within seven (7) days of being notified by Lessee’s insurance company that their
coverage has lapsed.

14. Lessor’s Remedies Upon Lessee’s Breach or Default. If the Lessee defaults in fulfilling
any of the covenants or terms of this Lease, or if the Premises become vacant or deserted,
then, in any one or more of such events, Lessor shall have the following remedies in addition
to all other rights and remedies afforded by law and/or by this agreement:



15.

16.

17.

18.

19

20.

a) Reentry. Lessor may reenter the Premises immediately and remove all of Lessee’s
personal property therefrom. Lessor may store the property in a public warehouse
or at another place of its choosing at Lessee’s expense.

b) Termination. After reentry, Lessor may terminate the Lease on giving five (5)
days written notice of termination to Lessee. Reentry only, without notite of
termination, will not terminate the Lease.

Default by the Lessor. In the event the Lessor defaults in the performance of any one or
more of its obligations hereunder and such default continues for thirty (30) days after the
Lessee shall have given the Lessor notice that such default exists (except that if the Lessor
cannot reasonably cure any such default within such thirty (30) day period such period shall
be extended for a reasonable time, provided that the Lessor shall commence to cure such
default within such period and proceeds continuously and diligently thereafter to effect such
cure) such will constitute an Event of Default hereunder.

Subordination. This Lease shall be superior in lien to all mortgages placed on the Leased
Premises after the date hereof. The Lessor shall not place any mortgage on the Leased
Premises after the date hereof unless such mortgage is expressly subordinate to the Lease any
extensions and modifications thereof without the written consent of the Lessee.

No Waiver. No waiver by either party of any term or condition of this Lease will be deemed
or construed as a waiver of any other terms or conditions, nor shall a waiver of any breach be
deemed to constitute a waiver of any subsequent breach, whether of the same or of a different
section, subsection, paragraph, clause, phrase or other provision of this Lease. Making
payments pursuant to this Lease during the existence of a dispute shall not be deemed to and
shall not constitute a waiver of any of the claims or defense of the party making such payment.

Estoppel Certificates. At any time and from time to time, either Party shall, upon twenty
(20) days prior written request by the other, deliver to the requesting party a statement in
writing certifying that this Lease is unmodified and in full force and effect (or if modified, in
effect as modified and setting forth the modifications and the dates thereof), the dates to which
rent and other charges have been paid thereunder, and stating whether or not, to the knowledge
of the party requesting such certificate the requesting party is in default in performance of any
covenant, agreement or condition contained in this Lease and, if so, specifying each such
default and whether there are any counterclaims.

. Utilities. Lessor agrees to provide, at its expense, to or for the Premises, adequate heat,

electricity, water, replacement light tubes, trash removal service, and sewage disposal service,
in such quantities and at such times as is necessary to Lessee’s comfortable and reasonable
use of the Premises.

Maintenance of Clean and Sanitary Condition—1Janitorial Service. Lessee agrees to keep
the leased Premises in a clean and sanitary condition, and shall provide janitorial service, at
lessee’s cost, as may be necessary for such purpose.



21.

22.

23.

24,

25.

26.

27.

28.

Interruption of Utilities/Services. In the event of any interruption or malfunction for any
reason of any utility or service to the Premises or Building, Lessor shall use reasonable
diligence to restore the utility or service. However, any such interruption or malfunction, if
restored within a reasonable time, shall not entitle Lessee to be relieved from any of its
obligations under this Lease, or grant Lessee the right of set-off or recoupment of rent, or be
considered a breach by Lessor, or entitle Lessee to any damages. Should any of the equipment
or machinery break down, or for any cause beyond the reasonable control of Lessor cease to
function properly, Lessor shall use reasonable diligence to repair the machinery or equipment
promptly, but Lessee shall have no claim for rebate of rent or damages on account of any
interruptions in service occasioned by or resulting from any such breakdown or cessation for
the length of time reasonably required for repair.

Destruction of Premises. If at any time during the term of this Lease, the Premises or any
part of the Building or Parcel shall be damaged or destroyed in a way that does not render the
Premises unfit for the conduct of Lessee’s business or that does not injure Lessee’s business,
Lessor shall promptly and through the exercise of reasonable diligence repair the damage and
restore the Premises, at Lessor’s expense, to the condition in which the Premises existed
immediately prior to the damage or destruction. In such case there shall be no abatement of
rent.

Acceptance of Premises by Lessee. Lessee has inspected the Premises and accepts the same
“As Is” in its present condition. By entering into occupancy of any part of the Premises,
Tessee shall be conclusively deemed to have agree that Lessor has performed all of its
obligations hereunder with respect to the Premises and that such Premises are in satisfactory
condition as of the date of such occupancy.

Lessee Deposits. No security deposit is required with this Lease agreement.

Assignment and Subletting. Lessee shall not assign this Lease, or sublet all or any portions
of the Premises without the prior written consent of Lessor. Absent such consent, any act or
instrument purporting to do so shall be null and void.

Governing Law. This Lease shall be governed by, construed and enforced in accordance
with the Laws of the State of New York.

Entire Agreement. This Lease contains the entire agreement between the parties, any
executor agreement hereinafter made shall be ineffective to change, modify or discharge it in
whole or in part, unless such executor agreement is in writing and signed by the party against
whom enforcement of the change, modification or discharge is sought.

Severability. If any provision of this Lease shall be declared invalid or unenforceable, the
remainder of the Lease shall continue in full force and effect.



29.

30.

31.

32.

33.

Relationship of the Parties. Nothing herein shall be construed to create an employer
/employee or joint venture relationship between the Lessor and Lessee or between the Lessor
and Lessee’s employees or professional contractors.

Performance of Covenants. No failure of Lessor or Lessee to insist upon the strict
performance of any covenant, agreement, term or condition of this Lease, or to exercise any
right or remedy consequent upon a breach thereof, and no acceptance of full or partial rent or
other payment during the continuance of any such breach, shall constitute a waiver of any
such breach or any such covenant, agreement, term or condition as set forth herein.

Force Majeure. Lessor shall not be required to perform any term, condition, covenant in this
Lease so long as such performance is delayed or prevented by acts of God, strikes, lockouts,
material or labor restrictions by any government authority, civil riot, floods, or any other cause
not reasonably within the control of Lessor, and which by exercise of due diligence, Lessor is
unable, wholly or in part, to prevent or overcome

Authority of Parties. Each individual executing this Lease on behalf of its principal
represents and warrants that he is duly authorized to execute and deliver this Lease on behalf
of said party.

Notices. Any notice or other communication under this Lease shall be I writing and shall be
sent by certified mail return receipt requested or by hand or by a nationally recognized
overnight delivery service addressed to the party for whom intended at its address set forth on
the signature page hereof, or to such other address as such party shall have designated by
notice or the other in the manner herein prescribed. Any such notice or communication shall
be deemed given when delivered or refused or when delivery is attempted on a business day
or in the case of a mailing by certified mail return receipt requested on the third day after
mailing. Notice may be given by the attorneys for the parties on behalf of the parties.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Lessor and Lessee have respectively signed and sealed this Lease
as of the date and year first above written.

LESSOR LESSEE
VILLAGE OF CHATHAM TOWN OF CHATHAM
John

Howg, Mayor Donal Wupervisor
% %— A /;/

Si éﬁature Si gnaﬁlfé/

Date

AS4 o [ (3514
&~ , .




From Tal Rappleyea
Hello All:

I've been analyzing the Mobile Home Law on and off since the meeting, because it is going to
be (or could be) substantially more complicated, depending on how deep of a dive you want me
to take on it.

As a first step, attached is our law as it stands, with color coding on it.

No color means it is fine.

Green means it needs to be updated, but there is nothing blatantly wrong.

Yellow means it really needs updating, but could wait for the ZURC to finish, if you would rather.

Red means it is blatantly contrary to NYS Law and should either be deleted or substantially
modified immediately.

Thus, my question is: How much do you want me to do now? Do a complete overhaul? Or just
fix the red and those few things associated with it? Or something in the middle?

§ 151-1Title.
This chapter shall be known as the "Mobile Home Ordinance of the Town of Chatham.”
§ 151-2Purpose.

The purpose of this chapter is to promote the health, safety, morals and general welfare of the
community, including the protection and preservation of the property of the Town of Chatham
and of its inhabitants, by establishing specific requirements and regulations governing the
occupancy and maintenance of mobile homes and mobile home parks.

§ 151-3Definitions.

For the purpose of this chapter, the following words, terms and phrases shall have the meanings
ascribed to them in this section:

MOBILE HOME

Any vehicle which is designed to be transported on its own wheels or those of another vehicle,
which is used, designed to be used and capable of being used as a detached single-family
residence and which is intended to be occupied as permanent living quarters containing
sleeping accommodations, a flush toilet, a tub or shower, kitchen facilities and plumbing and
electrical connections for attachment to outside systems.

MOBILE HOME LOT



A designated site of specific total land area which is located within a mobile home park for the
accommodation of one mobile home and its occupants.

MOBILE HOME PARK

Any parcel of land which is planned and improved for the placement of two or more mobile
homes which are used as dwellings and for occupancy of more than 90 consecutive days.

MOBILE HOME STAND

A durable surface located on a mobile home lot which is to be used for the placement and
capable of supporting a mobile home.










memeaia

2 WMlolli




3
)i
a=

=

()



ICIEVERICINY




ey wilalelal=da= ] 6e

I5qc8Moebile hoin




than Z2 hatrs: b schngweveriio any

; :
G @i,

ramnieliicehy

o the owies oftlane within the Towih of Cheihiain who inichds (o consiiuel on eueh laiml @

GG plEhl S EE O

(A1) G e Gl elEhE

[N

Gl

i hoss] sveicing

(0) A cetilfica o photostaile copy ofiihe deed o ihe lend whichinsicoics iheithe pplicaniis the

Owiich of such lane,

[Ceas seldoplinem e e mne




SloviGlone oiihie chapiehanothe Tceuicmenic afifhe Coltmbia Couniy Depalimei of | 1ol

o aulvlicenses mobile home patk shall have ah
| [ .."-_|l|i;.'_- (=00 :|'|l.'|'..._'.|

epaniinent ol lhcalil

N

S e ey Wt 1 i o o AT e = RV .
disrance afat leastilaie et RN E [Tel €l el e Gl e fl e LY LRSS

10



(SRaRine

ico heremesico wiiliin 20! ol

11



12



